ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE SPECI AL COVMM TTEE ON WAYS AND MEANS
March 26, 2004
7:05 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative M ke Hawker, Chair
Representati ve Bruce Wyhrauch, Vice Chair
Representative Vic Kohring

Representati ve Dan Ogg

Represent ati ve Nor man Rokeberg

Represent ati ve Ral ph Sanuel s
Representative Peggy W1 son

Representati ve Max G uenberg
Representative Carl Mses

MEMBERS ABSENT

Al l nmenbers present

OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO 538

"An Act relating to taxes on cigarettes and tobacco products;
relating to tax stanps on cigarettes; relating to forfeiture of

cigarettes and of property used in t he manuf act ur e,
transportation, or sale of wunstanped cigarettes; relating to
licenses and licensees wunder the Cigarette Tax Act; and

providing for an effective date."”
- HEARD AND HELD

PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: HB 538

SHORT TI TLE: TOBACCO TAX; LI CENSI NG PENALTI ES
SPONSCR(S): RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

03/ 18/ 04 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 18/ 04 (H WM L&C, FIN

03/ 24/ 04 (H WeM AT 7: 00 AM HOUSE FI NANCE 519
03/ 24/ 04 (H) Heard & Hel d

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -1- March 26, 2004



03/ 24/ 04 (H) M NUTE( V&M
03/ 26/ 04 (H) WeM AT 7: 00 AM HOUSE FI NANCE 519

W TNESS REG STER

JOHANNA BALES, Excise Audit Manager

Tax Division

Depart ment of Revenue (DOR)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expl ai ned aspects of HB 538 and answered
guesti ons.

M KE ELERDI NG Owner

Nort hern Sal es

Ket chi kan, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 538.

M CHAEL BARNHI LL, Assistant Attorney Ceneral

Commerci al / Fai r Busi ness Section

Civil Division

Department of Law (DQL)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered |egal questions pertaining to HB
538.

MEGAN TACK, Menber

Teens Agai nst Tobacco Use

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Spoke in favor of HB 538.

JENNI FER APP, Advocacy Director

Anerican Heart Associ ation

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 538.

DORI' S ROBBI NS, Menber

Juneau Clean Ar

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 538.

VANESSA SALI NAS, Coor di nat or

Snmoke Free Anchorage Coalition

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 538.

CHRI STI E GARBE, Chi ef Executive Oficer
Aneri can Lung Associ ation

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 2- March 26, 2004



Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 538.

CHAD BURNETTE
Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Spoke in favor of HB 538.

STEVEN PORTER, Deputy Comm ssi oner

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Departnent of Revenue

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Clarified aspects of HB 538 and answered
guesti ons.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 04-17, SIDE A

Number 0001

CHAIR M KE HAWKER cal | ed the House Special Commttee on Ways and
Means neeting to order at 7:05 a.m Represent ati ves Hawker,
Samuel s, Kohring, Wyhrauch, WIson, Guenberg, and Mses were
present at the call to order. Representati ves Ogg and Rokeberg

arrived as the neeting was in progress.

HB 538- TOBACCO TAX; LI CENSI NG PENALTIES

[ Cont ai ns di scussi on of SB 168]
Number 0100

CHAI R HAWKER announced that the only order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 538, "An Act relating to taxes on cigarettes and
tobacco products; relating to tax stanps on cigarettes; relating
to forfeiture of cigarettes and of property wused in the
manuf acture, transportation, or sale of unstanped cigarettes;
relating to licenses and licensees under the Cigarette Tax Act;
and providing for an effective date.

Nunber 0125
JOHANNA BALES, Excise Audit Manager, Tax Division, Departnment of
Revenue (DOR), introduced herself as the product manager for

cigarette and tobacco products tax.

CHAI R HAWKER asked Ms. Bales to explain the bonding requirenents
in HB 538.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 3- March 26, 2004



M5S. BALES explained that the |icensees who purchase tax stanps
from DOR and don't wish to pay at that tine are allowed to nake

a deferred paynent. For exanple, if a person purchases tax
stanps in January the paynent would not be due until the end of
February. In order to do this the |licensee has to post a bond

worth tw ce the anmount of purchase. Ms. Bal es gave an exanple
of a person who wanted to purchase $5,000 worth of tax stanmps in
a given nmonth. He or she would have to post a bond for $10, 000,
which would allow for a $5,000 purchase in January and a $5, 000
purchase in February, and the January paynment would not be due

until the end of February and, therefore, the bond would be
sufficient to cover the entire $10,000 in tax stanps received
wi t hout paying for them If a person does not want to post a

bond, he or she can pay for the tax stanmps upon purchase, she
added.

Nunmber 0333
CHAI R HAWKER asked if bonding is a common procedure in Al aska.

MS. BALES replied that it is. Bonds are required in alcoholic
beverage, notor fuel, and fisheries excise taxes, she said.

CHAIR HAWKER redirected his question to ask if, wthin the
exci se tobacco tax, bonding is a comon procedure utilized by
comer ci al busi nesses.

M5. BALES responded that about 50 percent of businesses use
t hem

CHAI R HAWKER asked Ms. Bales if she could characterize those who
do use the deferred bond procedure.

M5. BALES characterized those who do make use of the bonds as
the larger taxpayers - the snaller taxpayers just pay for the
st anps.

Nunber 0436

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked how many people buy cigarettes and
sell them

M5. BALES answered that there are about 75 |licensees, a
conbination of cigarette |icensees, and other tobacco products
(OrP). She noted that only the cigarette tax |icensees are

required to have a bond for the tax stanp.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -4- March 26, 2004



CHAI R HAWKER asked M ke Elerding to testify as a case in point
as to how the bonding process works, and to speak about his
concerns regarding an increase in tax and potential consequences
fromit.

M KE ELERDI NG Owner, Northern Sales, related that his business
is required to post a bond for the paynent of the cigarette
stanps purchased from the state. He said his bond at the
current tax rate is $700,000, and he has been working with his
i nsurance agent to secure a larger bond of $1,000,000 due to an
i ncrease in sales. However, it has been a challenging process
to obtain the larger anobunt, and a tax rate increase would
requi re a bond of $2, 000,000, which he predicts would be an even
greater challenge. He said his other choice is to pay cash for
the stanps, and the noney is just not there. He called it an
uni nt ended consequence of the bill

MR. ELERDI NG poi nted out that he has been paying a cigarette tax
for over 20 years, and his paynent record with the state has
been above reproach as a valuable partner helping to collect the
exci se taxes. He enphasized that this |egislation does not seem
to recognizes the value of his entity's services as a partner
for collecting the stanps. He questioned who would provide this
service if distributors such as hinself are out of the picture.

Nunber 0909
CHAIR HAWKER asked M. Elerding if he agrees with the logic
applied by DOR as to how a 200 percent of nonthly sales bond

requi renent i s determ ned.

MR. ELERDING replied that he wunderstands it and does not

di sagree with it. He nmentioned talking to his insurance agent
about putting a cap on the bond anount, but said he is not
confortable with that idea. He said he is looking for a

creative way to solve the problem of having to conme up wth
anot her $1, 000,000 bond for his conpany caused by the doubling
of the bond anount.

CHAIR HAWKER asked that M. Elerding think about offering
conponents of a solution to that problem later on in the
heari ng.

Number 1059

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 5- March 26, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked where in the statutes it talks
about bondi ng.

M5. BALES replied, AS 43.50.550.

CHAIR HAWKER indicated that copies of that citation have been
distributed [to the nmenbers of the commttee].

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG inquired if there is a way of solving
the aforenenti oned bondi ng issue. He noted that a few days ago
on the House floor, there was an issue of reclamation bonds for
m ning, and the Departnent of Natural Resources (DNR) suggested
a change in the wording that allowed other fornms, such as
letters of credit, for security. He asked for M. Bale's
opi nion of that concept.

M5. BALES replied that DOR is not opposed to that concept, and
it is allowed for other types of excise tax such as the
al coholi ¢ beverage excise tax where unencunbered properties are
all owed to be posted to secure the tax owed.

Number 1238

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked for a citation on that concept.

M5. BALES said she believes that is in DOR s regulations, which
is 15 AAC, Chapter 60.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if there is a statute that
aut hori zes that regul ation.

M5. BALES replied she would get back to the conmttee with that
citation.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if, conceptually, [DOR] would not
be opposed to that concept.

MS. BALES replied she does not believe [DOR] woul d be opposed to
it.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked M. Elerding if he has heard the
di al ogue between Ms. Bal es and hi nsel f.

MR. ELERDI NG replied that he has.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG inquired if it would be an acceptable
sol ution.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 6- March 26, 2004



Nunmber 1338

MR. ELERDI NG  speaking from past experience as a banker
replied, "Partially." He related that he is famliar wth
securities that could be used, such as a letter of credit, but
he opined it would be equally challenging. He explained that he
already has had to boost his line of <credit to pay for
addi tional business expenses, and financing costs wll increase
again when the new tax is applied due to carrying nore val uable
i nventory.

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON referred to a letter from M. Elerding and
asked about the state charging no excise tax for nmmil order or
Internet conpanies to ship OIP to Alaska, but charging tax to
conpanies in the state. She noted that it is a problem and
asked M. Elerding to respond.

MR. ELERDING explained that OIP are cigars and other non-
cigarette products nore adult in nature. Al'l  whol esal e
businesses in Alaska are required to pay 75 percent OIP tax.
For exanple, if a product costs $10, the excise tax on it is
$7.50 so the total cost of the product wthout markup or
anything else would be $17.50. If a mail order business from
another state sells OIP to a consumer in Alaska, they are not
required to pay the 75 percent excise tax, and the cost of the
sanme product is only $10. The consequence is that the state
does not collect a lot of OIP tax from Alaska distributors
because they cannot afford to sell those products. M. Elerding
said this looks like a l|oophole that needs to be closed. He
suggested not increasing the OIP tax to 100 percent, but rather
collecting the tax fromout-of-state mail order conpani es.

CHAI R HAWKER asked Ms. Bales to comment.
Number 1914

MS. BALES corrected a few statenents nade by M. Elerding saying
that any out-of-state distributor who holds an Al aska |icense to
sell cigarettes into the state is required to pay the OTP tax.
She explained that the |oophole for OIP is when an individual
buys from an out-of-state retailer on-line and the distributor

is not licensed in Alaska, then the individual is not required
to remt the OIP tax I|ike they would if they purchased
cigarettes from an unlicensed distributor. She said the
| oophole is smaller, but still a legitimte concern.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -7- March 26, 2004



CHAI R HAWKER asked if the state has the authority to require al
out-of-state sellers to register with the state.

MS. BALES said no. She referred to a U S. Suprene Court case
called [Quill Corporation vs. North Dakota], a sales tax case,
that states "if an out-of-state entity does not have physical
presence or nexus in your state, the state cannot be required to
have those conpanies collect excise or use tax for the state.
That's why, in the cigarette tax arena, we Jlook to the
i ndi vidual who inported the product to pay the tax," she said.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked if there is any way this could be
dealt with.

MS. BALES answered that [the legislature] could pass a statute
that requires the individual who inports OTP into the state to
remt the tax, simlar to retail distributors, on that product.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked if there already is a law in place
for people who resell tobacco products.

M5. BALES replied yes, and that a new statute would have to
address paying a tax for bringing OIP into the state for
personal consunption, which is already in place for cigarettes.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG requested that M. Barnhill join M.
Bales to testify. He noted that [Quill Corporation vs. North
Dakota] and the issue of nexus are nmjor issues dealing wth
sales and excise taxes. He sunmmarized [the Quill case] by

saying "to levy a tax on an out-of-state nerchant, you have to
show that there is a physical presence of sonme kind in the

state.” He asked M. Barnhill for further clarification.

Nunber 2430

M CHAEL BARNHI LL, Assistant Attorney General, Comercial/Fair
Busi ness Section, Cvil Dvision, Departnent of Law (DQOL),
explained that the Quill case was a case that involved the Quil

pen conpany, a nail order conpany selling pens and having no
physi cal presence in North Dakota. North Dakota attenpted to
get the Quill Corporation to collect a use tax on the pens, the
conpany appealed it, and it went all the way to the U S. Suprene
Court. He expl ai ned:

In a decision that has been harshly criticized by

academ ¢ comentators, the Suprene Court concluded
that North Dakota did have jurisdiction over Quill

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 8- March 26, 2004



under the due process clause, because ... Qill had

m ni num contacts with the state. However, under the
commerce clause, the U S. Suprenme Court concluded
that physical presence was required. And it's that

aspect of the decision that's been very controversial
and there's been discussion anongst the states - that
case canme out in 1992 - but there's been discussion
recently about finding a test case to take it back up
and chal | enge that deci sion.

MR. BARNHI LL nentioned that Senator Ben Stevens' sales tax bill,
recently introduced in the Senate, has a provision called a

"Quill provision, which extends the state's jurisdiction to
collect taxes wunder that bill to the folks in the U S
Constitution.™ He added, "If that tax is enacted the state
could take a Quill test case back up."

Nunber 2613

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG requested that M. Barnhill provide the
| ocation of that particular clause, and asked for his opinion if
an anmendnent addressing that issue were to be added to [HB 538].

MR. BARNHILL replied that in the context of cigarette sales for

nost out-of -state sal es, i ncl udi ng I ndi an reservations,
collectability is an issue. He opined it is probably not the
best context in which to do a Quill test case.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG suggested that if DOL were to take on a
test case, it should be an off-reservation distribution.

MR. BARNHI LL said that type of distributor mght be paying the
tax al ready. He nentioned that several states were in the
process of testing Quill.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if there are other ways of
meeting the Quill criteria. He said there is a provision in
Al aska |aw that provides for a non-state resident driving in
Al aska to authorize a governnental agency to be an agent for
service of process if the person is sued. Those cases have
survived a court challenge. He inquired if a distribution
business with m ninum contacts in the state could authorize DOR
to be its nexus for the purpose of collecting taxes.

MR. BARNHILL replied that is alnost identical to the Quill facts

except an agent is being deened for service of process. He
opined, "It would not get you any further.” [A case] has to go

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 9- March 26, 2004



back before the U S. Suprene Court to be tested because 1992 was
pre-Internet, the market place has changed radically, and the
| aw has to catch up, he concl uded.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if any other states have come up
Wi th creative ways to [deal with this probleny.

MR. BARNHILL said he did not know, but believed that way to do
it is to take the sanme fundanental question back to the U S
Suprene Court.

CHAI R HAVKER opened public testinony.

Nunber 3030

MEGAN TACK, Menber, Teens Against Tobacco Use, related that her
organi zation lets youth know about all of the harnful effects of

tobacco and tries to prevent its use. She said that noney
notivates people and if the price of cigarettes is raised it
could notivate people to stop snoking or not to start. She

expl ai ned that a pack of cigarettes costs $5, and by not snoking
for four years during high school she could afford to take a
trip around the world, to pay for her first year in college, or
to buy a small car. She said that [HB 538] will help prevent
snoki ng by teens.

CHAlI R HAWKER asked Ms. Tack if she attends school in Juneau.
MS. TACK replied she does.

CHAIR HAWKER asked if snoking anongst her peers is fairly
conmon.

M5. TACK said it is. She related her experience attending the
Gol d Medal Tournanment dance where she saw many under-aged teens
snoki ng. She shared that her parents both use tobacco products
and it bothers her.

Number 3317

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS asked Ms. Tack how her friends get the
cigarettes and whether they get older friends to buy them

M5. TACK replied that she doesn't have many friends that snoke,

but acquai ntances have older friends that buy [cigarettes] for
t hem

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -10- March 26, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH asked if Ms. Tack is famliar with the
snoki ng court for youth who snoke.

M5. TACK said she is sonmewhat famliar with that. She nentioned
she is on the Juneau Youth Court which has recently started
t aki ng tobacco cases.

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH asked if it has had any effect to deter
snoki ng.

M5. TACK replied that she is not sure.

CHAI R HAWKER stated his support for youth courts and nentioned
the commtnment by the legislature in the social services part of
the budget to put extra noney in for youth courts. He thanked
Ms. Tack for her part in the Juneau Youth Court.

Nunber 3444

REPRESENTATI VE OGG t hanked her for her testinony and then asked
her how mnuch she thought students would pay for a pack of
cigarettes.

MS. TACK said her nobm pays around $5 to $6 for a pack, which
makes her nmad because the noney could be going toward buying
cl ot hes.

REPRESENTATI VE OGG wondered what students were paying for
cigarettes when their older friends were buying them

M5. TACK replied that she did not know.
REPRESENTATI VE W LSON t hanked Ms. Tack for her testinony.
Nunber 3608

JENNI FER APP, Advocacy Director, Anerican Heart Association,
stated that this is a health issue because snoking is the
| eading cause of cardiovascular death in Alaska, and is
responsible for one out of every five deaths. She said that
this legislation will decrease that nunber, generate revenue,
and save noney. She noted that 67 percent of Alaskans like this
bill. She spoke about the "red-herring", the concern that this
bill would increase the tax evasion problem nentioned by Emly
Nenon in the |ast hearing. Every state that has significantly
increased its tax rate, has received substantially nore state
revenue than it would have otherwise received despite

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -11- March 26, 2004



consunption declines or any increase in snuggling or tax
avoi dance, she pointed out.

M5. APP, referring to the discussion during the last hearing
about the problenms New York has encountered with snuggling, said
she | ooked for a state that m ght be nore simlar to Al aska for

conpari son. She explained that Hawaii in 2001 established a
stanp tax requirenment like Alaska did [in 2003] and also raised
the tax. They generated $75 nmillion last year, up from $61
mllion before the increase in tax. She opined that Al aska,

with the stanmp tax and the proposed tax increase, as well as
with the enforcenent prograns, has the tools in place to
effectively increase the tax |ike Hawaii did.

M5. APP noted that only 4 percent of snokers buy their
cigarettes on-line or through mail order. She said that that
nunber is not expected to change because over 80 percent of
snokers are trying to quit, which neans that their snoking
purchasing habits tend to be to buy one pack at a tine. That
popul ation is not seeking out Internet sales to buy in bulk, she
concluded. She stated her strong support for the bill

Nunber 4021

REPRESENTATI VE OGG asked what the decrease of youth snoking was
in Hawai i .

MS. APP said she could get that information for the committee.

REPRESENTATI VE OGG asked what the inpact of advertising has on
yout h snoki ng.

M5. APP replied that from 1995 to 2003 there has been a 50
percent decrease in Alaska of high school student snoking.
During that time the tobacco tax increased up to $1 a pack in
1997, and at the sanme tine, the noney for the 1998 Master
Settl enent Agr eenent started bei ng put t owar ds t obacco
prevention and control, a counter-nmarketing canpaign. Because
of the overlap of those tw factors, it is very hard to
determ ne what was responsible for the decline. For every 10
percent decrease in the price of cigarettes, there is about a 7
percent decrease in youth snoking, she related. O her states
that have not increased the tobacco tax, but have started a
prevention canpaign with the noney from the Master Settlenent
Agreenent, have al so seen a decrease.

Number 4300

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -12- March 26, 2004



REPRESENTATIVE OGG, referring to the increase in tax and the
potential increase in bootlegging, inquired if the people who
are dealing in black-market cigarettes are making a profit off
of youth.

M5. APP deferred to Ms. Bales for the answer. She noted that
because of the continued decrease in youth snoking it doesn't
seem to be true that youth are taking advantage of bootl egged
cigarettes. She pointed out that in the years that the tax was
i ncreased, 1997 to present, there has been an increase in
revenue generated by the tax, about $47 nmillion a year, and
there has not been a dip or drop that would suggest effective
boot | eggi ng.

REPRESENTATI VE OGG said the present tax seens to be doing the
j ob of decreasing snoking.

M5. APP agreed but said that there are still some pretty high
snoking statistics: 44 percent of Alaska Native youth snoke,
26-27 percent of adults snoke, which is nore than nost states.
She nentioned that other states are increasing the tobacco tax
to keep up with inflation so that it has an inpact.

Nunmber 4646

DORI S ROBBI NS, Menber , Juneau Clean Air, said she also
volunteers for the Al aska for Tobacco Free Kids.

TAPE 04-17, SIDE B

M5. ROBBINS continued to say that she supports Teens Against

Tobacco, al so. Preventing kids and adults from snoking is the
nost inportant goal of this bill. She said in 1998 the cost to
Medicaid from tobacco caused illnesses was $60 mllion. She
suggested that increasing the tobacco tax will help recover sone

of those costs, and she called it a pre-insurance charge for
when snokers have exhausted their own funds and nust go on
Medi cai d. She cited an exanple of a friend who died about a
year ago who was in this situation

CHAI R HAWKER requested that M. Robbins provide a copy of her
witten testinony for the nenbers of the committee.

M5. ROBBINS continued saying that protection from snokers in

U S Departnent of Housing and Urban Devel opnent (HUD) and
Al aska Housi ng needs to be considered in this bill. Secondhand

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -13- March 26, 2004



snoke is a problem for the elderly, she explained, saying that
she, herself, has had chronic illness caused by secondhand
snoke. She concluded by saying that tobacco nust begin to
accept responsibility for its costs and she asked the commttee
to consider all that she has said and raise the tobacco tax.

Number 3905

VANESSA SALI NAS, Coordinator, Snoke Free Anchorage Coalition,
related that she works wth youth groups in Anchorage who
educate their peers on the dangers of tobacco use and secondhand
snoke. She said the youth in her group are aware of advertising
tactics wused to nmke snoking attractive, as well as the
consequences of snobking. The kids are telling her that the use
of chew is on the rise in Anchorage. She pointed out that the
nore cigarettes cost, the less likely kids are to buy them and
get addicted. Raising taxes will saves |lives, she concl uded.

CHAIR HAWKER noted that Representatives Ogg, Rokeberg, and
Seaton were in attendance.

Number 3630

CHRI STIE GARBE, Chi ef Executive O ficer, American  Lung
Associ ation, spoke in support of [HB 538]. She renmarked that
the tobacco tax increase is one strategy along with the counter
mar keting pieces, youth activism comunity activism and
enforcement all working together to create the 50 percent
reduction in youth snoking. She advocated for keeping the price
of cigarettes high, because an estimated 12,000 |ives have been
saved because of the reduction in youth snoking. It costs the
state and citizens of Al aska over $6.38 per pack in healthcare
costs and lost productivity, so even at $2.00 per pack, this
activity is still being subsidized, she noted. She stated the
i nportance of keeping the price of cigarettes high and her
appreciation for the conmttee' s work.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked Ms. Garbe to describe the history
of the wuse of the funds from the [1998 Mster Settlenent
Agreenent] for tobacco prevention and control prograns, and the
status of the current budget.

M5. GARBE responded that Al aska brings in about $25 million each
year from the Master Settlenent Agreenent and 80 percent is
being used for capital projects, and 20 percent, $4 mllion to
$5 mllion per year, could be used for tobacco prevention and
control prograns. The Center for Disease Control and Prevention

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -14- March 26, 2004



recoomend a minimum of $8 mllion a year for those prograns;

however, since FY 99 only $1.4 million, a small portion of that
$20 mllion, has been used for that purpose. She explained that
t he tobacco control community works each year to get nore of the
$20 million left for tobacco prevention and control prograns.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked about the |atest budget figures
related to Medicaid and tobacco cessation prograns.

M5. GARBE said it is her understanding that $1,000,000 has been
put into a budget anendnent to be returned to the tobacco
prevention and control prograns, but the other $500,000 still
needs to returned so that the full 20 percent is available for
use. Only in FY 03 was the full 20 percent actually avail able
to be used, she said.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if there is a connection between
those prograns and this |egislation.

Nunber 3141

M5. GARBE replied absolutely not and enphasized, "W are only in
favor of the tax because its health benefits. W're not
interested, nor do we expect any of the revenue for these
prograns. " She nmaintained that the noral fiber of the Master

Settl ement Agreenent funds should be the funds that are used for
t hese tobacco prevention and control prograns.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said he wanted to nake a point to the
commttee that this has been an on-going battle for a nunber of
years. He said, "All of this should be weaved together in the
web of our lawraking in terns of public policy and where we are
goi ng. You folks should be aware that the Master Settlenent
Agreenent noney conmes from a 45 cent tax per pack to the
snoker." One of the portions of the agreenment is to put noney
into tobacco prevention and cessation progranms, which, he
opined, has failed to be adequately done. He said he is
concerned about going forward and increasing taxes on the
snoking public, but not funding the prograns that they have paid
for. He stated his concern about not having control over where
t he noney collected by the tax is going.

Number 3000
CHAD BURNETTE shared personal insights about growing up in a

snoking famly. He surmsed that if it had cost nore to snoke
it is possible that menbers of his famly m ght have quit or not

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -15- March 26, 2004



snoked as nuch. He nentioned the cost to taxpayers in terns of

noney and | oss of inconme from tobacco-related illness. He said
he isn't sure a tax could be created that is big enough to
of fset those costs. He posed the question, "Wat's costing us
nore, doing nothing about it, or perhaps, inplenenting a tax

that could save |lives and noney."
Nunber 2715

MR. ELERDI NG related that even though the tobacco tax of 1997
was successful in cutting the nunbers of people who snoke, every
tax has unintended consequences. He urged the legislature to
exercise caution and use |laws already on the books to deal wth
underage snoking, and not "tranple the rights of legitimte
Al aska business interests and of Alaska's adult snokers by
raising the tax to fix the problem because, invariably, it wll
create uni ntended consequences. "

CHAI R HAWKER t hanked M. Elerding for pointing out the technica
aspects that would affect his business. He related that [the
commttee] would be working its way through [those issues] in
the bill.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked M. Elerding if he is involved
wi th vendi ng nachines in his business.

MR. ELERDI NG replied that he has one vendi ng machi ne i n Kodi ak.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said it has been suggested that the
i censing fee for vending machi nes be increased from $25 to $50.
He asked M. Elerding for his opinion on the inpact this would
have.

Nunber 2254

MR. ELERDI NG opi ned that nost people who have vendi ng nachines
are operating in a bar environnent where there are adult
consuners, and an increase would not be a | arge burden to them

CHAIR HAWKER clarified that the anobunt is $50 per |icense, not
per machi ne.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG wondered what anmount other rmunicipal
governnments are charging for tobacco tax.

CHAIR HAWKER closed public testinony. He noted, wth sone
consternation, that public testinony had been specifically

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -16- March 26, 2004



extended at the request of the [tobacco] industry who elected
not to testify today.

Nunber 2103

M5. BALES, in response to Representative Rokeberg's question
about municipal excise taxes, related that Anchorage, Juneau,
and Fairbanks |evy such taxes. Anchorage and Juneau |levy a tax
on cigarettes of 30 cents per pack, and Fairbanks charges a
straight 8 percent excise or sales tax.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if the | ocal muni ci palities
collect the tax simlar to the way DOR collects it, and if DOR
works with themin any way.

M5. BALES replied that DOR does not collect the tax on their
behal f. She said it is her understanding that the taxpayer base
is very simlar to DOR s.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if any city could levy a tax for
t obacco products.

MS. BALES said she believes so.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS inquired what the penalty is for giving
t obacco products to m nors.

MS. BALES deferred to M. Barnhill.

MR. BARNHILL replied it is a crimnal |aw question and he does
not know.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUJELS responded that he can find out.
Nunber 1842

REPRESENTATIVE OGG related a conversation with Steve Porter
[ Deputy Commissioner, Ofice of the Conm ssioner, DOR], of a
di scussion of page 2 [of the bill]. Representative Ogg
requested clarification of whether the provision applies to an
i ndi vidual who inports [cigarettes] or just to a business that
does.

MR. BARNHI LL expl ai ned the aspects of the bill beginning on page
4. Under the Alaska State Constitution an innocent owner is
protected from by a due process right and all statutes [in the
bill] have been drafted to protect that right, he said.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -17- March 26, 2004



Equi prent and material used in the manufacturing, sale, offering
for sale, or possession for sale, barter, or exchange of
cigarettes can be seized during crimnal activity such as
selling unstanped cigarettes, he explained. Aircraft, vehicles,
or vessels used to transport, as well as nobney, can be seized.
The seizure process involves going to court to get a court order
and show ng probable cause, he said. There is a provision for
seizing property wthout getting a court order, but it has to be
incident to a valid arrest or search, subject to a prior
judgnent, or if there is probable cause, he noted. The courts
are always involved and notice in various forns has to be given
to owners after the seizure has taken place. Next is a court
hearing to deci de what happens to the property, he said.

MR. BARNHILL referred to page 6, subsections (e) and (f), as the
provi sions that protect innocent owners. Subsections (h) and
(i) [on page 7] state where the property is going to go. He
termed subsection (j), [page 7], as a unique section that goes
beyond what Al aska constitutional |aw requires. If the vessel
or vehicle is in a village and is the sole neans of
transportation for a famly residing in the village, then there

is an option for the court to give that property back. G eat
| engths have been taken to protect the rights of innocent
owners, he concl uded. He said this does not apply to persons
ordering cigarettes t hr ough t he | nt er net for per sonal

consunption, only businesses that are in violation of Alaska
| aw.

MR, BARNHILL, referring to questions from Representative Qg
about bootlegging in Alaska, said he does not know of any
studi es; however, he said he does have information on smnuggling
in other states and countries.

Nunber 1236

STEVEN PORTER, Deputy Conm ssioner, Ofice of the Comm ssioner
Department of Revenue, in response to an earlier question by
Representative Ogg, clarified that the |anguage in the bill does
not apply to individuals. He cited the |anguage on page 5, |ine
4, "manufactured, sold, offered for sale, possessed for sale" as
evidence that applies only to businesses and not private
properties.

REPRESENTATI VE OGG offered two exanples of where an individua
may be liable for forfeiture consequences. The first exanple is
if sonmeone in a village goes to the airport in their car and
pi cks up a package of cigarettes they ordered through the nail

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 18- March 26, 2004



Then, they barter cigarettes with a kid for salnon. He noted
that that person would fit under the stipulations on [page 5,
lines 3-6]. He also pointed out that on page 2, [lines 10-16],
an individual who inports cigarettes is required to pay the tax.
He said he doesn't see the difference between an individual and
a business, as far as forfeiture is concerned, as M. Porter
tried to point out. He voiced a concern about creating a
crimnal class of people who are just addicted to cigarettes.

MR. PORTER replied that [page 2, lines 10-16] applies to the
liability for the tax itself. A person who inports is liable to
pay the tax, and that clause only applies to those responsible
for paying the tax, he explained. The forfeiture provision is
the penalty side of the tax, and only those people who are
liable to pay the tax, those who manufacture, sell, or resell
cigarettes, are subject to forfeiture, he said. In response to
Representati ve Qgg' s first exanpl e, M. Porter sai d
Representative Ogg is probably correct [in assum ng the person
would be liable for forfeiture] because that person has entered
the next stage, which is to barter or sell.

Nunber 0737

REPRESENTATI VE OGG restated his concern about the forfeiture
part of the bill when the price of the cigarette tax is raised
above other states and a crimnal elenent is potentially created
in Alaska. "Wy should we put ourselves at that height so that
we have to adopt these kind of penalties?' he asked. He

predicted the penalties will have an inpact on villages.

MR. PORTER asked Representative Ogg if he is concerned with the
commerci al businesses or just the private parties.

REPRESENTATIVE OGG replied that he is nore concerned wth
i ndi vidual citizens because the tax wll be ainmed at addicted
adult snokers creating a prohibition status on cigarettes.

MR. PORTER responded that he feels page 5, [lines 3-6] are of
the nobst concern to Representative Oyg, and he suggested
deleting six or seven words out of that section after first
talking to Legislative Legal and Research Services about the
| egal inplications of doing so.

Nunmber 0358

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked at what point the regulatory
enforcenents take pl ace.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -19- March 26, 2004



MS. BALES replied that |ast year SB 168, the cigarette Stanp Tax
Act becane effective on January 1, 2004. One provision states
that an individual can bring five packs of cigarettes into the
state each nonth wi thout paying tax.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG replied that five packs is half a
carton, so anyone who brings back a carton of cigarettes from
Seattle is a crimnal. He said that is awful. He asked if
t hose persons woul d be subject to an "enforcenent net."

MR. PORTER said there are many statutes on the books that people
violate every day and that |aw enforcenent |ooks at the nore
egregious elements. He conpared it to child support enforcenent
where the worst-case violations are pursued because there is
limted nunber of personnel in enforcenent.

Nunmber 0045

CHAI R HAWKER offered a personal observation about the interest
of small businesses being protected from predatory pricing from
out -of -state vendors by adding strict sidebars.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said that this bill would put Al askans
in violation of the law. He asked, "Were do we draw the |ine?"

TAPE 04-18, SIDE A

MR. PORTER replied that no one is in violation of the law by
bringing cigarettes into the state; they are in violation of the
| aw by avoi di ng payi ng the tax.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if that individual needs to pay
tax on cigarettes bought in Washi ngton.

MR. PORTER replied yes.

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON replied, "The law s the law. |If you break
the law, you pay the penalty."”

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG suggested not enacting bad laws wth
uni nt ended consequences.

Number 0125

REPRESENTATIVE OGG pointed out that there already 1is a
forfeiture law in place in Alaska where the cigarettes are

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 20- March 26, 2004



confi scat ed. He said, in the new bill, other forfeiture
provisions for vehicles, boats, and bank accounts have been
added, with due process. |In Washington, as a result of the tax,
there were increased seizures and penalties, $650,000 from a
penalty of $10 per pack, or $250, [upon seizure of cigarettes].
For the year 1999, there were four purchaser enforcenent
operations conducted and the agents issued 17 crimnal citations
seizing 100 cartons and six packs of cigarettes. He stated a
concern that the forfeiture provision is ained at addicted
snokers.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON replied that perhaps the anpbunt should be
changed, but that people who are going to break this |aw know
exactly what the limt is.

MR. PORTER clarified again that the addicted person does not
come under the forfeiture statute unless he or she engages in
the resale of cigarettes.

Nunmber 0435

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS agr eed. "You're after the guy who is
going to get a van load of cigarettes at a reservation, drive
themto Alaska, fly themto a village, and nake a whol e boatl oad
of noney on them"™ He opined that such a person's vehicle
should be confiscated, and that is the point [of the forfeiture
statute].

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG voiced new concerns. He suggested
maki ng Amendnent 3.

REPRESENTATI VE OGG replied that public testinony is being taken
and the amendnent part of the neeting is yet to cone.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG referred to Section 13, on page 4, line
24, and said it looks like the bill adds a provision to the
forfeiture section, but that is not the case. Al that the
section does is nobve an existing section of law, AS 43.50.620,
which currently has the exact sanme |anguage, and changes the
nunbering to subsection (b) of the preceding Section 610.
Section 620 beconmes the new law with a change of the nunbering.
He asked M. Barnhill if that is correct.

MR. BARNHI LL replied yes.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG continued to say, even if t he
forfeiture provisions were taken out of this bill, the |anguage

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -21- March 26, 2004



would remain in current | aw He asked the commttee to | ook at

page 7, line 12-20, where it shows what happens if soneone is
convicted of m sconduct involving unstanped cigarettes in the
first or second degree, which 1is cigarette snuggling, in

addition to other penalties for conviction. He said that right
now first degree is a Cass C felony, second degree is a Cass A
m sdeneanor, and the only difference is the anount. He asked
M. Barnhill if that is correct.

MR. BARNHI LL replied, "Under or over 1000 cigarettes."

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said even if a person is convicted of a
m sdenmeanor, their aircraft, vessel, or vehicle are subject to
forfeiture. He opined it is a very large penalty for a very
smal |l infraction. Looking at lines 17-20 he said vehicles or
vessels nust be forfeited in cases that have nothing to do with
smuggl ing cigarettes. For exanple, if there is a prior felony
conviction or probation, the vehicle is forfeited, he said. He
asked why those provisions were included in the bill

MR. BARNHI LL replied that the provisions were put in at the

reconmendations of the crimnal division of DOL. He expl ai ned
that the person would have to be convicted of felony tax
evasi on. "These are bad guys and | would just echo
Representative Sanuels coments earlier - we need to have

effective enforcenment tools in order to interdict cigarette
smuggl ing and deter crinme," he said. He said [DOL] believes it
is appropriate to have [that provision in the bill]. It is
subject to the constitutional right to protect innocent owners,
and to subsection (j) for a vehicle or a vessel in a village, he
added.

Nunmber 1108

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if it were true that a village
situation would be subject to forfeiture because of a past
fel ony conviction. He asked M. Barnhill if he believes it is
fair to seize a vehicle or vessel for snuggling a small anount
of cigarettes when there is a prior felony conviction at any
tinme.

MR. BARNHILL said he would accept Representative Guenberg's
correction, and he thinks it is an appropriate enforcenent too
because tough enforcenent provisions are needed in order to
deter crine.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -22- March 26, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said that the bill does not go to House
Judiciary Standing Committee and there may be constitutiona
probl ens. He asked if the forfeiture provision "increases
stress on the bill."

MR. BARNHILL replied that in 1981 the Al aska Suprene Court took
up and validated the issue of the constitutionality of
forfeiture provisions. He opined that there is "no question
that this provision is constitutional." The question of
fairness is a policy issue for the |egislature, he added, but
the administration's perspective is that in order to adequately
enforce the cigarette stanp tax and bootl egging |aws there needs
to be adequate tools.

Nunber 1342

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON said it is inportant to realize that when
other states increased cigarette tax, sone people took advantage
of the situation in order to make noney. She opined that
[felons] are nore inclined to commt this sort of crime, and the
bill nust have "teeth in it" in order to prevent this kind of
activity. It will keep everyone on his or her toes because the
law is not being changed, bootlegging is illegal now, and just
the tax is being raised, she opined. She said it is worth it
because lives will be saved.

MR. BARNHI LL read the conclusion of the Wrld Bank Study called
"How big is the worldw de cigarette-snuggling problenf” The
study hoped to answer the question about how nuch of an obstacle
smuggling is to higher cigarette taxes, he related. Af ter
anal yzing all the data, the report concl uded:

Countries need not nmke a choice between higher

cigarette t ax revenues and | ower cigarette
consunpti on. Hi gher tax rates can achieve both
obj ecti ves. Cigarette tax revenues can be enhanced
still further by effective methods to reduce
corruption that wll result in dimnished cigarette
snmuggling and increased tax collections. Lastly,
cooperative multilateral efforts to increase cigarette
tax rates on a regional basis are likely to be an

effective way to conbat snuggling.

MR. BARNHILL submitted the previous data as an exanple of the
notion that increasing taxes deters the incidence of snoking

and he said that wth effective enforcenment tools snuggling can
be conbat ed.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -23- March 26, 2004



CHAI R HAWKER requested that M. Barnhill provide the study for
distribution to conm ttee nenbers.

MR. PORTER remarked about the inportance of the fact that the
| egislature itself chooses the |evel of enforcenment under any

pi ece of |egislation. He said that the Public Safety fiscal
note contains "a couple hundred thousand dollars” for
enf orcenent . If nore cases were to be pursued, a substantial

anount woul d have to be added to the fiscal note, he added.
Nunber 1740

CHAI R HAWKER noved to adopt Anmendnent 1, |abeled 23-GH2116\A. 1
Kurtz, 3/23/04, which read:

Page 1, following line 5:
Insert a new bill sections to read:
"* Section 1. AS 43.50.030(a) is anended to read:
(a) For each license issued to a manufacturer,
and for each renewal, the fee is $50 [$5].
* Sec. 2. AS 43.50.030(c) is anmended to read:
(c) For each license issued to a vending nachine
operator, and for each renewal, the fee is $50 [$25]."

Page 1, line 6:
Del ete "Section 1"
| nsert "Sec. 3"

Renunber the followi ng bill sections accordingly.
Nunber 1820
REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG obj ected for di scussion purposes.

CHAIR HAWKER explained that the anendnent addresses the
disparity between licensing fees in different categories of
commerci al tobacco deal ers. The bill raised one category from
$25 to $50 and left manufacturers at $5 and vendi ng operators at
$25. This amendnment makes the commercial tobacco activities in
Al aska subject to a consistent $50-a-year annual |icense, which
is consistent with OTP sellers, he said.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noted that currently under the bill,
subsection (d) is increased. He asked if under proposed
Amendnent 1, subsections (b) and (c) are increased and (d) is
al ready i ncreased.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 24- March 26, 2004



CHAIR HAWKER said that is correct. He noted that there is a
fifth category, the buyer category - a personal use consunption
license - which is left at $25.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG st at ed his support of Amendnent 1

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked for a definition of
"manuf acturer."”

Number 2045

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said the definition is in AS 43.50.170,
[ paragraph] (6), "manufacturer neans a person who nakes,
fashions, or produces cigarettes for sale to distributors or
ot her persons.”

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG wondered if it includes |arge conpanies
or just local nmanufacturers. He said he is looking for the
rationale behind the $5 [tax for manufacturers], but would not
oppose the anmendnent.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG replied that it does not seem to
excl ude the bi g conpani es.

CHAI R HAWKER said that there are no commercial manufacturers in
the state and his intent is to make it consistent across the
boar d. He asked Representative Rokeberg if he has renoved his
obj ecti on.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG renoved his objection to Anrendnent 1.
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG al so renoved hi s objection.

CHAIR HAWKER asked if there was any further objection to the
notion to adopt Amendnent 1. Hearing none, it was so ordered.

Number 2222

CHAIR HAWKER noved to adopt Anendnent 2, |abeled 23-GH2116\A 2,
Kurtz, 3/23/04, which read:

Page 8, line 23, following "report":
Insert "not later than the last day of the nonth
in which this Act takes effect”

Page 8, line 25:

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -25- March 26, 2004



Delete "no later than 30 days after the effective
date of this Act."
Insert "in six sequential nonthly installnments. The
first installnment shall be paid not later than the
| ast day of the nmonth in which this Act takes effect.”

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON obj ected for di scussi on purposes.

CHAI R HAVWKER expl ai ned that proposed Anendnment 2 addresses the
concern about the floor tax concept raised by M. El erding and
whol esal e busi nesses. The bill, as currently drafted would
inpose a floor tax imediately and in its entirety. [ Amendnent
2] allows the tax to be assessed i medi ately, but payable in six
sequential nmonthly install nents.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked for clarification about how the tax
would work if there is an overl apping of inventory.

CHAIR HAVWKER replied that the tax would be on the inventory on
hand on the date that the tax changes. [ The business] can pay
that assessnent over six nonths and all new purchases would be
subject to the tax fromthat point forward, he explained.

Number 2354

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS asked if Chair Hawker had checked wth
distributors to see if six nonths is a good rotation tine.

CHAIR HAWKER said he is not sure rotation tine enters into it.
M. Elerding indicated he believes six nonths is an appropriate
period of time [to nmake the paynents]. He asked M. Elerding to
speak to the matter.

MR. ELERDING replied that six nonths is a big inprovenent over
having to pay the whole tax imediately. He said he is
concerned that he would have had an excess anpbunt of inventory
on hand the day before the legislation passes to accommobdate
consuner demand, but then the day after, due to the higher

price, it would have been difficult to sell the remining
anount. The six-nmonth tinme period helps solve this problem he
sai d.

REPRESENTATIVE W LSON asked if this anmendnent prevents
busi nesses from stockpiling cigarettes before the tax is |evied
and then charging a higher price for cigarettes on which they've
paid no tax.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 26- March 26, 2004



CHAI R HAWKER said that is correct.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON renoved her objection to the notion to
adopt Amendnent 2.

CHAI R HAWKER asked whether there was any further objection to
Amendnent 2. There being no objection, it was so ordered.

Nunber 2743

REPRESENTATIVE OGG noved to adopt Anendnent 3, which read
[original punctuation provided]:

Page 4, line 24 through
Page 8, line 9:
Del et e
Renunber the followi ng bill sections accordingly.

CHAI R HAWKER obj ected for di scussion purposes.

REPRESENTATI VE OGG expl ai ned that Anmendnent 3 keeps the status
guo, whereas [HB 538] adds a new forfeiture section. The
amendnent woul d del ete Sections 13 and 14 fromthe bill

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG stated his support for Amendnent 3
because he has concerns about lines 12-20 on page 7, which state
there may be additional penalties for persons convicted of

previ ous felonies. Though he said he is in favor of the bill,
he stated that he wll request a referral to House Judiciary
Standing Conmittee if the anmendnent fails. He opined that the
issue of forfeiture should be a separate bill and that there may
be constitutional problenms with it. He received an opinion by
DOL that a "Quill anmendnent” simlar to the one Senator Ben
Stevens put into the sales tax bill wuld put stress on the
bill; however, he said he believes it would put very little
stress on the bill and he plans to offer one like it.

Number 3109

REPRESENTATI VE =~ SAMUELS, in response to t he forfeiture
di scussion, opined that smuggling and its penalties are |inked
to the bill and should not be separate legislation. He referred
to page 5, line 1, and said he has no problem with elimnating
the words "barter, or exchange", and he said he agrees wth

Representative G uenberg that page 7, subsection (i), on prior
felonies and forfeiture may be too severe and he suggested
adding a sidebar such as "within the last 10 years for a crine

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -27- March 26, 2004



agai nst a person". He disagreed wth taking away the entire
tool because it would hanper |aw enforcenent, and he referred
back to his exanple of a person who is snuggling cigarettes for
a living. He stated his opposition to [Anmendnent 3], which
woul d delete the entire section.

Nunber 3226

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON related her opposition to [Amrendnent 3]
because she said she couldn't inmagine anyone being upset if a
crimnal who is on parole has to forfeit a vehicle or vessel

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG stated that while Representative Ogg has
a good point, he agrees with Representative Samuel's position
that there has to be sone enforcenment, but as the bill is
witten, it goes too far.

REPRESENTATI VE OGG said that the existing statutes seem to be
working and he is attenpting to make it sinple. He voiced a
concern about the bill as whole being a revenue device, which
may encourage prohibition because of addictions. He opined that
[HB 538] goes a step too far and that the current provision,
whi ch provides for forfeiture of tobacco products thenselves is
enough.

CHAIR HAWKER related that hi s only di sagr eenent W th
Representative Ogg is whether or not this provision will mnake
crimnals out of people who are addicted to tobacco products

He said he agrees wth Representative Sanmuels when he said that
this does not penalize the addict who may seek his or her
product from an illicit source; this provision pursues the
illicit source.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON said she hears what Representative Ogg is
sayi ng, but her conclusions are different than his. Raising the
sales tax by a $1 may encourage illegal activity, however, the
very fact that there are high consequences serves as a
deterrent.

Nunber 3713

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG responded that he agrees wth Chair
Hawker's interpretation of the bill that the provision would be
a force against [illegal] comercial activity, but he suggested
that the testinony from DOL stated the contrary. The poor
enforcement of the "five-pack rule" shows that there is a
problemwith too nuch discretion on the part of DOL. He said it

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 28- March 26, 2004



brought out "the renote but illegal opportunity for mschief to
be done here to individuals.” He opined that is Representative
Qgg's point and it concerns him

Number 3807

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS replied that the five-pack rule is the
|l aw of the land and would not be changing in this bill, and he
agrees that it nmay need to be addressed, but the forfeitures, if
the bartering and exchanging are elimnated, apply to people who
are selling cigarettes. He said if [Arendnent 1] fails he wll
offer an anendnent to address Representative (Guenberg's
concerns, which would fix the problem but l|eave the tool in
pl ace for the smuggler.

CHAI R HAWKER endorsed Representative Sanuels' approach should
the anmendnent fail. He said the bill will be held to address
this issue as well as the bonding considerations previously
di scussed today.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he thought the bill was going to
be passed out today.

CHAIR HAWKER said it will not be noved out today.

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG requested that the crimnal division
testify at the next neeting and said he would not offer the
Qui I I anmendnent today.

CHAI R HAWKER asked if there was any further debate on Amendnent
3.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if there could be an adjournnent
before having to finish dealing wwth the current anendnent and
take it up again at the next neeting.

CHAIR HAWKER asked Representative (Ogg if he is wlling to
wi t hdr aw Anendnent 3.

Nunmber 4150

REPRESENTATI VE OGG wi t hdr ew Amendnent 3.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG expl ai ned several conceptual anendnents
he will reserve for the next neeting. One concerns getting rid

of the "two tines bonding requirenent” and going to a singular
requirenent, and the other is to get the nethodologies into

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -29- March 26, 2004



regulation to allow the different types of securities for
bondi ng.

CHAI R HAWKER expl ai ned that the "double-up" bonding is from the
time selling is commenced to the tinme paynent is remtted and it
IS actual ly a two-nonth  w ndow. He concurred wth
Represent ati ve Rokeberg's observati ons.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said M. Elerding's testinony is correct
in terns of insurance history, availability of the bonding, and
hi gh costs being a problem

CHAIR HAWKER said he would be receptive to denonstrated
financial responsibility being placed in statute. He said it is
a discussion he would |ike to continue.

Nunmber 4426

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG pointed out that the statute referred
to earlier by Ms. Bales is under "alcohol"™ and the |anguage
state that the departnment, in its discretion, may issue permts
in place of bonds to certain people. He suggested using that as
a nodel for this bill

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said he will be offering an anmendnent to
repeal the five-pack provision and one about "incidenta
possession resulting from interstate travel for personal
consunption only of like three cartons or 30 packs of cigarettes
shall not be subject to the forfeiture or other penalties.” He
said there needs to be a policy statenent by the |egislature not
to make crimnals out of innocent citizens. He related that he
plans to offer an anendnent that reserves all taxation for
tobacco products to the State of Al aska, except for a broad
sales tax on the part of nunicipalities. Those communities that
have existing tax would be grandfathered in. He noted that one
of the problens of the "sin tax syndrone"” is that there could be
mul ti-layers of taxation.

TAPE 04-18, SIDE B
Nunber 4640

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG opined that currently there is a "flat
line" with increasing taxes nostly at the nunicipal |evel and
there is not any major decrease in consunption. He stated that
it is a concern of his that the nore tax is raised the fewer
peopl e snoke, as the pool gets smaller. He requested nore

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 30- March 26, 2004



di scussi on about the level of tax saying that the $1 is an
arbitrary anount.

Nunber 4424

CHAI R HAWKER observed that there has been extensive testinony on
the elasticity of the market, and the inhibiting value of the
t ax. He offered to arrange for the presentation material to be
made avail able to Representative Rokeberg.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG stated his skepticism of the data
because he opined it has not been in place | ong enough.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG remarked to M. Barnhill that he does

want to pursue the "Quill issue" for the purpose of asserting
the sovereignty of the state.

[ HB 538 was hel d over.]
ADJ OQURNVENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Special Commttee on Ways and Means neeting was adjourned at
9:34 a.m

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -31- March 26, 2004



